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                                              33 E. Broadway Ave.
Meridian, ID  83642

208.863.4160

www.meridiandevelopmentcorp.com

MINUTES                                           
 MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

Wednesday, June 8, 2011, 7:30 a.m.

Meridian City Hall Conference Room

33 East Broadway Avenue - Meridian, Idaho
1. Call Meeting to Order (Pipal):
Meeting called to order at approximately 7:30 a.m.
2. Roll-call Attendance (Pipal):
     O
Julie Pipal – Chairman 
     X
 Keith Bird – Member 

     O 
Craig Slocum – Vice-Chairman
___O__ Jim Escobar – Member 
     X
Eric Jensen – Secretary/Treasurer
     X
 Larry Lipschultz – Member 



__O___ Tammy de Weerd – Member 


___X___ Dan Basalone – Member



___X___ Jennifer Pike

     X
 Joe Borton – Counsel


     X
 Ashley Ford – Project Manager
 

3. Confirm Agenda (Jensen):
Bird:  I move we confirm the agenda as published.  

Lipschultz:  Second.

Jensen:  A motion and a second.  All those in favor.  Opposed?

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
4.
Consent Agenda (Jensen):

a. Approve Minutes of May 25, 2011 Regular Meeting:
b. Accept Treasurer’s Report and Notice of Bills Paid:

Lipschultz:  I move that we approve the Consent Agenda as one item.

Bird:  Second.

Roll Call Vote:  Bird, aye; Lipschultz, aye; Basalone, aye; Pike, aye; Jensen, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
5.      Broadway Building Construction Update (Wright Brothers):

Ford:  We have Bob Grubb here of the project from Wright Brothers to give his monthly update for the last 30 days and looking forward to the next 30 days.  

Grubb:  Over the last 30 days we have completed the work on 2nd Street and got the building (inaudible) and ready to go up for construction steel and masonry.  Over the next 30 days we will be working on the street improvements on 3rd Street and storm drainage, asphalt pavement, curb and gutter and going (inaudible) construction steel (inaudible).  I was prepared to come and talk about some of the issues that have put the project – if you guys wanted to go into some of those at this time?  If you would like to have a meeting some other time --?
Ford:  I think it probably would be appropriate to do high level issues here.

Jensen:  Just for the record, Chair Pipal has arrived and Member Escobar and so I will turn the meeting over to Ms. Pipal.

Pipal:  Good morning.

Grubb:  So some of the delays that have impacted the schedule one of the things was the irrigation lateral – the one that cuts through the center of the property has obviously (inaudible) cost impacts – the power (inaudible) has also cost time delays in order to get the overhead power lines out of the way.  The overhead power and the power poles impact our ability to go vertical in the structure – primarily the first 30 feet from north going south, which is how far we have to stay away from the power lines and it has impacted (inaudible) at least two weeks – we have got steel being dropped on the site this morning and the way that the building is designed is the structure still has to go up on the north end of that building that gets (inaudible) and we are looking at least another two weeks for the power lines – some of the other issues with that is we can’t replace that 30 inch RCP until after the water goes out.  It appears that that irrigation lateral is in a siphon which means that the water level is higher than the pipe is when completely full and I don’t know on the down stream side if when the water goes out then it completely drains or if there is water that stays in there for a period of time afterwards.  That could cost some de-watering issues when you go to replace the pipe (inaudible) as soon as the water starts flowing through the irrigation canals.  The other impacts is it is going to take about 60 days once we are able to get in and start on that irrigation lateral to complete the work – take the pipe out, put the new pipe in, set the new manhole boxes, install the irrigation pump, curb and gutter, pervious paving, asphalt paving and landscaping.  For the suggestion that I have is I wouldn’t proceed with any of your onsite landscaping unless you have provisions in place to manually water them, until that pump is in place, otherwise you are going to have a high mortality rate on your plant materials and then the weather becomes a factor too – once you start getting into the middle of October, adverse weather conditions can be a factor in pouring concrete and being (inaudible) requirements and that.  Sixty days is tight, but it does have a few weather conditions, weather considered into the 60 days, but not much – so if the fall ends up being as adverse as the spring has been, we could extend it a little further.  On the cold weather issues – if we have to end up providing cold weather protection for the asphalt (inaudible) hot water and that increases the cost to pass onto the owners of the project.  On the Buy America, typically on our previous experience on Buy America projects, there has been a third party review entity that we send all (inaudible) Buy America and are well versed in requirements of it and so we put together the rest of the (inaudible) and if we have questions we go to that entity and they give us direction on where to go with it.  On this project it has been somewhat difficult to get a direction as far as to where we are going with the Buy America and to the requirements.  We have, to the best of our ability tried to submit the required information as far as the Buy America and that and the direction sometimes changes because we don’t have an entity to go to that is well versed in the requirements of Buy America for this project and it has cost us some delays in trying to get our suppliers and subcontractors submittal’s turn around.  For example, our electrical is sitting at 90 days now and still trying to sort through the last issues as far as some of the fittings and miscellaneous small items that we don’t necessarily consider to be such an issue, but they are causing some delays, getting turned around.  So just a broad over view of our project schedule – when the bid documents first started it had a completion date of August 17th and then through the addendum from the changes and that, the addendum changed the completion date to September 16th and then through the bid process and finalizing paperwork on the front end and execution of the contract, the contract has a completion date of October 18th, so in there your schedule or project has been pushed back two months and then with the miscellaneous delays of the unfortunate condition of the project with the irrigation and the power lines and a few other things, the unforeseen conditions as far as the various items that have been in the way of that, we are anticipating that the actual completion date of the project is probably going to end up around the 18th of December.  
Ford:  Can I clarify?  Is that for a certificate of occupancy or is that for completing the irrigation?

Grubb:  That is going to be the completion of the project.  The occupancy is still in question because your entry into your project is solely off of the alley.  You have no street frontage access to your property or to the building.  I don’t know what is going to happen with the Fire Marshall or some of the other public entities as far as signing off on occupancy to your building with your main entry not being complete and with us being in there working right in the middle of it all – I apologize, we will work as hard as we can to keep this project on schedule and try and make this as painless as possible for everyone, it is just unfortunately everywhere we turn around we seem to run into road blocks that delays the project and are unforeseen conditions that are out of our control.  Does anyone have any questions?  

Pipal:  Any questions from the Board?

Lipschultz:  So this other project that you worked on where you had the Buy America, the entity that was doing the review was that a consultant or who was that doing that?

Grubb:  Yeah.  That was a consultant.  I don’t know if they were retained by the architect or if they were retained by the owner, but I think they were retained by the owner, but (inaudible) in Pocatello that was a Buy America project also and there was a third entity that we went to if we had questions who was well versed on the Buy America and it is something that we don’t have here.  Rhonda from VRT has been as helpful as possible and been able to and answering questions, but what I don’t know if her knowledge of it is as sophisticated as some of the other entities that we have worked with because (inaudible) it hasn’t been as nearly the impacts as it has on the other projects as it has on this one.  

Lipschultz:  Just one other question.  On the schedule what do you see as kind of a best case scenario – I mean, if you know we have good weather from here out and if we don’t run into any other road blocks?  I mean, realistically what do you see as a range as the earliest we might be complete?

Grubb:  That December 18th date is probably going to be – it does have a few days in there for weather considerations, but the weather is pretty much an unknown.

Ford:  We are in the process of trying to get – the Deputy Fire Chief for Meridian has just retired so we are in the process of working with the Fire Department to be able to secure some sort of level of understanding as to what would allow us to have a temporary certificate of occupancy for the building understanding that the parking lot and some of the other issues will be outstanding as well as ongoing and so we are still shooting for that mid October assuming there is no other issues that would affect the building per se.  

Grubb:  The power lines (inaudible) and you might have a couple weeks of slip there.

Pipal: Any other questions?

Borton:  You had made reference to some of the delayed causes and had said miscellaneous delays and you had identified power lines and some of the concrete foundation issues from last month. Can you specify any others you are referencing as far as a cause for specific delay on the project?

Grubb:  Yeah I don’t want to cause anyone pain.  My understanding of your procedures is that it takes a Board meeting to approve and sign construction change orders and change order requests or owner change orders.  The direction that it takes in order to bring a Board meeting together has again caused impact on the turn around, primarily when we started digging the building foundation we ran into an existing footing from a previous building and we sent in an RFI and got a direction and turned in the pricing and tried to clarify the pricing and ended up needing a CCD, constructive change directive in order to move forward and the impact from the time that we were completely shut down and couldn’t move forward without a direction to remove the footing to the time we got a signed CCD was a calendar 6 to 8 day impact.  Typically you have got the owner’s representative who can make a call, at least up to a certain dollar amount to where we can immediately move forward and maybe have a day impact and that usually can be incorporated into our schedule and can shuffle things around, but when we start having multiple day impacts they build up pretty quick and start shuffling things back and has a pretty big effect on the project.  My understanding is that is how your bylaws are set up; it is just unfortunate that you don’t have a maximum dollar amount to go up against and for someone to say make the call and I understand there is a lot of people on your Board and trying to get you all together – 
Borton:  Thank you and I appreciate the concrete component in the 6 days and you made reference to the power lines, but again, the original question about miscellaneous delays are those the two when you talk about delays?  Those are the two causes?  I mean I was just wondering what those are specifically?

Grubb:  Well you have the existing concrete materials, you have got the power lines, which is actually a multitude of issues and then you have got your irrigation lateral.  

Pipal:  Any other questions?  All right.  Thank you very much.  
6.      Broadway Building Partnership (Lipschultz/Ford):

Ford:  We have a few items to cover.  First of all we are in the process of working through the condo plat process.  So you have a couple of scopes in your packet today from both Erstad Architects and also from Civil Survey Consultants be able to complete that work and go through the process with the City of Meridian.  We are also trying to work out an issue with the city per their code, we would have to condo plat the parking lots and spaces that would go with the building and because of our agreement was shared, but we retained the ownership of those parking spaces, we are having to go to City Council next Tuesday and ask for alternative compliance and some direction on how to proceed because the code does not allow us to try to do what we are accomplish. I think the city staff and Mr. Borton here has had a few more conversations than I have about the legalities.  But I think everybody is working towards finding a solution so I don’t think this is going to be a huge detriment.  We just need a direction before we actually authorize the drafting of the plat.  Again, we are in a very lucky position with Meridian where we are allowed to start the platting process for a condo which is the fact that we have been issued a building permit where most other jurisdictions, the building needs to be almost complete before we can start that process and we are ahead of the game because of the jurisdiction we are in.  So we will be working through that process.  Again I do have two scopes in your packet that I do need some approvals for in order to get those to these consultants so we can pull the trigger on those as soon as we get direction from the city.  I should have Bob address this, but we still do not have the change orders from Wright Brothers mostly because they have not been able to pull out all of the concrete foundation because it does extend underneath that alley at this point, so we do not have final quantities at this time.  So we are still working with Erstad and Wright Brothers to get those change orders as quickly as possible so you can understand the implications to the project.  I thought maybe, Madame Chair, I would let you and Mr. Lipschultz talk about the meeting that we had with COMPASS and VRT last week and then the outstanding issue that we need to talk about as a Board and how you all would like to address regarding the AV equipment.  

Lipschultz:  As Ashley said we had a meeting last week with some representatives of both VRT and COMPASS and Colliers and just kind of discussed the overall communication issues and the idea was to make sure that we are all on the same page and everybody felt that the communication wasn’t going to be a road block thing and kind of a process to surface issues as they arise and talk through them and I think we had a good meeting and I think everybody felt more comfortable in how that communication process was going to happen with (inaudible) who is a point person and all of those kinds of issues.  The one outstanding issue I think that came out of that and as a follow up to that meeting – a fan apparently – Ashley you might be able to explain this better than I can, but I think in the original bid package there was not a fan in the cabinet, which is required for the AV computer equipment in there and I think the estimate on the cost was $750 –
Ford:  Approximately and that was a best guess estimate from VRT – they did follow up last evening with an email saying it might be better to get that number from the general contractor for estimates, but that is what we have to work with at this moment that $750.  

Lipschultz: So we are asking for action on that at this point or what do we want to do --?

Ford:  I think that is something that is needed at this point and time.  It is my understanding that the plans have been resubmitted back to the general contractor to move forward with without the fan, so probably a timely decision to make and to be able to authorize that work and those changed drawings from Erstad.  
Pipal:  I guess I was still thinking from the meeting and maybe you can clarify that there was still some discussion about at what point was Erstad’s work going to be carried forward verses the needs of the partners and so maybe I didn’t think that we got to the point where we decided that we were actually going to come into the interior of the room rather than –

Ford:  I think that is a fair assessment.  I think in VRT’s and COMPASS’s mind this is what they feel is the outstanding issue and they would like the fan and they are asking for the Development Corporation to authorize Erstad to move forward with that design and to make that change on the plans.  So obviously it is this Board’s purview to either make that decision or to put that back.  I do know we have representatives from COMPASS and VRT here if they would – we could have them come up and explain the situation from their point of view.  

Pipal:  Please state your names and addresses for the record and who you represent.

COMPASS Rep:  (Inaudible) 800 S. Industry way.

Jalbert:  Rhonda Jalbert with VRT, 830 Main.  

COMPASS Rep:  As far as the fan goes we are not asking MDC to cover the cost as much as we simply want to know what that cost would be so that we can decide whether we want to do it now or fix the issue later.  

Jalbert:   The $750 includes the fan and also two post rack that it would fit inside verses the shelving so you would screw your equipment in verses just sitting it on the shelf.  
(Inaudible discussion)

Pipal:  Okay, one more time what would you like us to do?  

COMPASS Rep:  I would simply like to know what this – when we request a change order I would like to know what that cost of that is that we are looking at and is it worth it doing it now or is it better to wait?  So, a ball park would help us.  
Lipschultz:  I think one of the outcomes that we had last week is that our plan is the Chair, Ashley and I are going to meet with the architects, a scheduling difficulty but hopefully by next Tuesday we will meet up with them to kind of talk through some of that communication process and discuss if some change orders do occur that if COMPASS or VRT need something done that no matter whose expense it is – you know how can we kind of get through those issues economically without each minor change order becoming a new design issue of some sort.  It seems like that some of the issues that have surfaced with the architect become a bigger project than any of us envision.  So we are going to talk through that and see how we can come up with a better way to kind of handle these requests.  So if VRT or COMPASS surfaces something that they would like to see done – you know how can we have a process in tact and get an answer back of what is the cost and scope of the work and make sure that we kind of stay on track so that it is not a serious impact on anybody’s budget and get that done economically.  We will meet with them by next Tuesday and report back at the next meeting.

Pipal:  Member Basalone did you have a question?

Basalone:  Well part of it was answered, but I guess my question is this sounds like you are talking about interior design verses overall building construction design and needs or hard wiring and that kind of thing and I was wondering if the partners in their interior design can analyze the building construction in terms of what their interior design needs would be so that it could meet all of the changes that are needed in a hard building construction could be done at one time, rather than piece meal.
COMPASS Rep:  We did discuss the AV cabinet with the architect because we actually considered having a (inaudible) to make sure there was enough air flow around their equipment and the architect indicated to us that the cabinet would -- I came out with the feeling that there was going to be a fan there; there was going to be openings for it and there would be a fan installed and then when we saw the shop drawings for the cabinet the fan was not included, so we brought that to their attention and they said that that would be something that would have to be retrofitted due to the fact that they didn’t know what type of a load of equipment would be in that, but yet no one asked us either what type of equipment would go in there.  We did discuss it and I came away with the feeling that the fan was going to be included.
Basalone:  I guess my larger question is that the only concern based on your interior design or could there be others?

COMPASS Rep:  There may be others.  We just don’t know.  We did a cursory review of the plan and everything seemed to be in order.  We located all the outlets (inaudible) and reviewed the HVAC and the zones (inaudible) to code; reviewed the interior finishes, so for the most part I would say we have done the cursory review, but there is always things that are going to come up just during construction.  We would like to be able to have the opportunity to come to the Board and say look this isn’t exactly how we envisioned it and we would like to make this change, but we feel that the economics are higher than what they should be (inaudible).  

Pipal:  I think that one of the things that came up from that meeting was Member Lipschultz’s point earlier being able to actually make a request and work together so that we had that information turned around quickly and with what Rhonda is saying just making sure that we are getting the best price as possible, after all this is a public project and we need to ensure that that is what we are getting.  So I think as far as what we have here today, we have some informational and I will rely on Member Lipschultz having walked this project all the way through on what – I am sorry we are doing this now, but they are here, so let’s just do it no – but what we can do to expedite a request for pricing on something just so our partners have good information as they go forward to occupy the building.  I saw the email trail that went around and for those of you that have been in meetings with me know how I feel about emails, I think they just create more problems than they solve, but would there be a recommendation maybe on projects that you worked on how something – how something like that would happen so the information could be obtained – not something that is done because we specifically talked about that in the meeting because there is a difference between communication, how information is shared and who needs to know what but it is really an open process here and then where the decision points are and what point (inaudible) the Board needs to make a decision and this is an informational request – how would we help with that?  
Lipschultz:  I think as we talked about in our meeting last week this project has been a little bit unique in that we have got a lot of customers in the project – MDC, VRT, COMPASS and so there have been a number of representatives.  I think we did talk about to your question, Member Basalone that we think everybody has reviewed the project as much as possible; potentially as we get into the stage where we are doing some finishes and things there may be some smaller requests for service and I think that is what everybody’s concern was – is there a way to a minor request, whether it is changing a color on some paint or some minor request how do we get through that easily and efficiently and cost effectively?  I think that is the basis of our meeting next week with the architects is to make sure that they are totally understanding of the budget constraints of everybody, not just and obviously we have got a lot with MDC that we have all been concerned about from day one, but obviously VRT and COMPASS, public entities that have their own budget constraints and we are all partners in this and how do we get those kinds of changes done quickly?  So we just need to talk through that project with the architect and hopefully we won’t run into change orders, but again – I don’t foresee, hopefully, any big change orders, but I mean small things like that that are reasonable changes, you know, how do we do that to accommodate everybody?  You know to your question on other projects, I think getting or having the architect and the contractor engaged and partners in the project is just how that happens and good communication flows and as those things surface, the contractor can come back and really give us a true sense of the impact and the architect as well and getting it done as easily as possible.  So it is a communication issue as we talked about last week.  
Pipal:  So we have the details of the AV of what you need, what you are requesting and we have those details somewhere in that long email.  

(Inaudible)

Pipal:  And if we have that maybe we can use this as an example of how we would like to go forward.  I hate to have this conversation last week and have this conversation this week and to have it again next week on something that seems so simple.  But if we can get it through on this one and how we want to go forward and we can use it as a template going forward from here.  Thank you both.  Ms. Ford do you have anything additional?
Ford:  Gosh, I hope not.  That seems like plenty to me.  I think in general, I mean, obviously we are running into issues that we are trying to stay on top of them as quickly as we can, but we have a lot of moving parts.  Again, I think we are able to move forward and certainly with the condo plat a little quicker and so there are some good things happening as well and some positive things with the project.  

7.      Broadway Building Change Orders (Lipschultz/Ford):

a. Koegen Edwards Change Order

b. Erstad Architects Change Order

Pipal:  Are we prepared to deal with item number 7?  Do we have the detail?

Ford:  I think we were waiting for Mr. Lipschultz to be in attendance at a Board meeting so that we can talk through the follow up conversations that we had with Koegen Edwards and Erstad as well and finally be able to take maybe a final action or maybe a non action, I guess, as to how we want to deal with these once and for all because they are still out there.  I would like to get back to both of them and let them know how the Board has decided to move forward.  

Pipal:  Member Jensen do you want to talk about the review budget (inaudible) just overall on how we would handle (inaudible).  We talked about it at the executive committee meeting and there were some things that we hadn’t done –

Jensen:  Well based on last year’s budget or this current year’s budget there is a lot of items that we had budgeted for certain things that hadn’t been used and so there – one of the big ones was the sidewalk improvement program and I can’t remember exactly what all of them were, but there were several on the budget that just hadn’t been used.  (Inaudible).  

Pipal:  I think for the edification of our new members, welcome, Jennifer.  When we went through the process of obtaining the bonding, we had secured Koegen Edwards to be our representative for that and there was a lot that came up; a lot of additional work that had to be done that they weren’t aware of with Washington Trust, our financial partner.  The discussions that the Board had they came back and they had significant – requested a significant change order in their contract and what we looked at as a Board and what we requested was we look at the budget, how much money do we have because we have a lot of additional expenses that weren’t expected (inaudible) but we tried to look at is at what point did Koegen Edwards represent people of the City of Meridian, at what point did they go above and beyond just fulfilling their requirements as bond counsel and where did they go – was there any flexibility?  Because they really did a good job for us in making sure that we are secured – that we had the bonding in place and they were really good at representing us with the bank. So we discussed before at what point that they really represent the taxpayers and could we maybe meet them and justify covering some of their expenses where they really did a good job for us?  Then we also really looked at that with Erstad Architects as well because as you heard a little bit the Buy America project they had a lot of surprises and at what point were they really representing the citizens and do we have any flexibility that we could justify covering those expenses either to them or to their subs? So that leaves us to today and we have these change orders before us.  So we can look at was there a way or an opportunity to cover some of those expenses and the right thing to do?  Did I cover that in that long winded explanation?

Lipschultz:  Yeah.   As I understand it there was a discussion at the last meeting where I was not present and it is unfortunate for them that there was a cost overrun.  I think at the same time Koegen Edwards recognizes that this was a public project going in and they basically proposed and bid the cost and estimated the cost – they did not give us a heads up as we were getting into extra costs, which I think was unfortunate and we could have considered this and had the opportunity to consider those cost overruns in advance.  I think on the other side there was a point where they kind of went above and beyond and worked with the bank to negotiate on our behalf and work for a very favorable rate which is going to save the taxpayers some money and I think the last trip they came down and kind of (inaudible) for a day and a half with the representatives of Washington Trust to work through all of the issues with the counsels and I think at a minimum it could make sense for this Board to approve two additional out of pocket expenses that they had.  One related to the outside text counsel and (inaudible) and that was to our benefit and that was $1,350 and the other was the out of pocket expenses that they had for that last trip down here to kind of work through all of the issues with Washington Trust and that was approximately $1,100. I think if you combine those two expenses it is about $2,450 for that.  Again, those were out of pocket expenses that I am not sure were not originally envisioned in their estimate and we did realize some real benefits from that in terms of going forward in savings on interest and getting that done.  At a minimum I think it could make sense for this Board to approve those out of pockets.  
Basalone:  What is the bottom line of those?

Lipschultz:  In total, all their billable hours we had – I think the original proposal was an estimate of $35,000 and Counsel Borton do you have the total?  

Borton:  The additional funds were, using rounded figures, I think $55,000 of additional and I think they would write off about $35,000 of that additional; asking for this Board to provide an additional, I think, $15,000 is their request to supplement the original $35,000 they were provided.
Basalone:  Our obligation would be $15,000?

Borton:  $15,000 added to the original 35 base.

Pipal:  I think we need to be clear – as Member Lipschultz said they didn’t inform us as they started to go outside the scope of their contract and they didn’t let us know how much they were going over.

Basalone:  I guess my question is that I wasn’t quite clear on what they were absorbing verses what they are asking this Board to extend – is it the $15,000 additional?

Pipal:  That is correct?

Ford:  Actually Madame Mayor that is incorrect.  The balance that they are asking from us is $20,589.25.  So I am not sure – that is based on the March 17, 2011 letter.

Pipal:  (Inaudible) preceding their letter.  Member Lipschultz what was the date of the meeting that you were talking about?

Lipschultz:  I believe that was March 9th.  

Ford:  There appears to be a discrepancy in the letter dated March 17th.  It does talk about – we accordingly propose to increase the fees by $15,000, write off $35,000, but then in the itemized – the actual bills statement it does ask for the $20,000, so there is a discrepancy between the two (inaudible) confusion.  

Pipal:  Member Lipschultz you were looking at the fees and expenses from that March 9th trip?

Lipschultz:  That is correct.  I believe that was the final trip prior to closing – again, they were down for about a day and a half and spent that time with Washington Trust and their attorneys.  I think as you probably discussed at the last meeting and in my discussions with Roy Koegen, he fully recognizes that these were items that should have been surfaced as the project was moving along and that there is non obligation on MDC’s part, probably legal obligation to pay anything more although if we go back to the scope of the agreement it was an estimated cost and I think it could be equitable to at least compensate them for the additional out of pocket expenses that we did get a direct benefit for.  That would be my recommendation.

Basalone:  Just one additional question based on Mr. Jensen’s report.  Mr. Jensen you mentioned that there could be funds available because of the sidewalk project that wasn’t completed – my question would be are there funds to be encumbered for that project based on a board resolution which would then have to be (inaudible) or are those funds just reserved funds that could be used?

Jensen:  It was a placeholder (inaudible) for projects that we wanted to try and – 

Basalone:  No funds were encumbered that were specific to the project?  Okay. 

Escobar:  The structure of our contract with Koegen Edwards is that just a lump sum contract for $35,000 which was why we paid them that amount? Is that the way that was set up?

Ford:  The original contract was an estimated fee. But that was the amount that was agreed to verbally.

Lipschultz:  In your packet you have the December 22, 2010 engagement letter and on page 2 under fees, it does talk about that $35,000 is based on the current understanding of the terms structures and schedules of financing, etc. and such fees may vary if material changes the structure of financing occur or if unusual or unforeseen circumstances arise which would require a significant increase in their time of responsibility.  I believe to some extent that that did occur in terms of some of the requests that came back from Washington Trust and some of the hoops that they had to go through on their behalf.  

Pipal:  Member Lipschultz can you speak up I am not sure that everyone can hear you?

Lipschultz:  I think there was a material change in what was done on our behalf with some of the last minute requests by the bank, the lender and some of the work that Koegen Edwards had to do on our behalf.  I guess I would ask Counsel Borton, as an attorney his perspective.

Borton:  It was discussed a little bit two meetings ago.  We had a great talk with Mr. Koegen, he understands the contract, understands there is not a specific contractual obligation in to fund any of the $15,000 requested, but he did articulate as Commissioner Lipschultz has as well the specific and actual value add that they did provide and their failure, if anything was just not communicating properly with MDC in advance in incurring those expenses.  So if you are clear that those expenses were a definite value added for MDC, it just is a matter of your comfort level in providing any additional funds of the $15,000 requested to finally close the matter as to their work for MDC.  

Pipal:  In the invoices and payments in the letter they did say we reserve the right for payment an interim statement because their customary approach is to close (inaudible) when the financing and everything is secure, but our concern is that we have an agreement in place that we did approve (inaudible) we did not have notice that there were numerous, obviously, numerous significant material overruns and without any kind of interim statement.  So it comes back to that question, where did they really benefit the citizens of Meridian and maybe that is the place where we need to look for a decision on the cost overruns.  

Borton:  To add to that, I agree with Commissioner Lipschultz’s comments that the out of pocket cost of approximately $2,400 fees described appear to be clearly appropriate for their members on their expenditure on behalf of MDC to advance your goals.  

Pipal: We would be able to identify those specific – we could as a Board approve specific items in their request, correct?

Borton:  You can do however you are most comfortable.  You can identify specifically line items – looking for just a final figure regardless of how it is allocated by MDC, it is within your discretion to pick a round number or fixed expense.

Pipal:  That is what I wanted to know.  Thank you.  

Lipschultz:  I would move that the Board approves a final payment to Koegen Edwards in the amount of $2,450 representing their out of pocket expenses for their trip on March 9, 2011 and 2010 tax counsel expenses incurred with (inaudible) Carrington and Sutcliffe, LLP to the benefit of the Meridian Development Corporation.

Escobar:  Clarification.  The $2,000 figure how did we come to that because I see a bottom line of total expenses of $4,239.49?

Pipal:  After we have a second, we could discuss it?


Jensen:  Second.


Pipal:  A motion and a second.  Please continue.

Escobar:  Of the $4,239.49 and then the additional $1,350 so how did you come to that number? 
Lipschultz:  Again, I took the March 9th expenses, which begins with that $678.20 airfare expense, added the $678.20, $1,203.19 and added the $1,350 outside pocket counsel expense.

Pipal:  Did everybody hear that?  We have a motion by Member Lipschultz and second by Member Jensen.

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Lipschultz, aye; Basalone, aye; Pike, aye; Pipal, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

Pipal:  Ms. Ford do you want to walk us through the letter that was provided by Erstad?  

Ford:  These are the same change orders that were provided to this Board a couple of months ago back in March and then Commissioners Lipschultz and Pipal and I were in these discussions with Erstad and then we followed up with a conversation with VRT, but the big one is ASR 04, additional services request for Buy America.  Basically Erstad along with their sub consultants, Musgrove Engineering and Land Group had to make some significant changes to the drawings and to the plans as we went through the bid process due to the Buy America provisions that, I guess, there just was not a clear understanding and direction to be able to initially and so we had to go back and make changes throughout the month of December in order to be in compliance, so they are asking to recuperate some of those costs.  ASR 04C which is additional services requests for the value engineering, again this was a change order that they gave to us as a result of our request to look at some of the higher level items associated with the building construction when the bids came in so much significantly higher than we had anticipated as a Board.  So Commissioner Lipschultz and I had asked Erstad to look at the top three, four or five items and give us some round figures to be able to come back to the Board and say okay, if we don’t do x, y and z this could save us “x” number of dollars.  They went pretty in depth with their analysis much more than we ever anticipated and that is the reason for the $2,500 change order.  But again these are outstanding change orders and they have not been acted on by the Board and we would like to bring some closure to these with Erstad and given the conversations that we have had with them over the last month and a half and also VRT, I thought both Commissioners Lipschultz and Pipal could give your ideas on what you have been hearing to the Board and put these to rest.
Pipal:  Ms. Ford can you clarify.  You and I had a conversation at the last meeting where you explained to me what happens when you have to make significant changes like they did to the drawings and perhaps Member Escobar can help us out if we need a little professional help.

Ford:  I will explain what I know.  Because obviously the drawings were well on their way when I came on as project manager, but I guess there was some initial conversations between the architect and all of the parties involved in the summer and early fall, whereas Erstad had a direction and thought they had an understanding of what clauses applied to this project from a federal standpoint because VRT Board Members are using federal dollars, so there is additional strings attached to those dollars and things that we have to do that are mandated, otherwise VRT could be on the hook if we don’t live up to those guidelines.  My understanding is they went, based on their understanding -- Erstad moved forward based on their understanding of the conversations when the Buy America issues surfaced in December.  It became abundantly clear that the plans did not meet all of the specifications and therefore that is a chain reaction to all of the plans that had been put together for the bid package. It also impacted all of the sub-consultants that helped with those documents as well too and those drawings and obviously that was a large cost and also a large cost from Erstad’s standpoint to do research to truly have an understanding of Buy America and how that impacts the project as well.  Commissioner Escobar if I am maybe not explaining it well as to the drawings I can certainly –
Escobar:  Anytime you have to work through federal monies or any sort of government funds there can be lots of unknowns and it is in my understanding in the (inaudible) that the architect needs to make sure that all of that is being covered – understanding where those monies are coming from, which do come from the tenant in this situation.  So I do believe there was some accountability – if I were in this position, so the tenant, but a minor accountability compared to what the architect should have been familiar with and aware of and if this was their first federal project with coming into Buy America’s standards that is part of the risk that they take on in their contract as they understand how to move forward.  That is just my opinion of how I would handle that situation and how I see our situation here.  
Lipschultz:  My perspective on these three change orders or change of scope.  The first I totally agree with Member Escobar.  I think as we went through the process of selecting the architect, there was total clarity that this was a federal project who was going to be involved in it and part of the process included a discussion of prior engagement and federal projects and I think at the end of the day as we selected the architect, the final contract with the architect referenced the requirements for federal FTA project and I believe we had total reliance on the architect that they either had the knowledge or get the knowledge to be able to design a project that would totally comply with all of the FTA requirements.  So to that, item number 1, the change of scope for $18,149.50, my recommendation would be to deny that change.  The second change for $1,057 I am not sure that is in the packet here, but my understanding – 

Ford: That was approved.

Lipschultz:  That was approved.  That was the one that had to do with the bonding and I totally concur with that.  The third item that has $2,975 that related to the (inaudible) in LEED, I think as Ms. Ford stated we went back to the architects and just asked for three or four high impact cost items that would be involved in getting LEED that we could make a recommendation to COMPASS and VRT as to whether we should pursue LEED verses Energy Starr or some other certification. There was those email requests that came back with an email and our expectation was not that there would be any added costs in that subsequent discussions with Erstad.  We reinforced to give us a heads up any time the request comes from anybody that is going to cause a change of scope in their opinion, but my recommendation on this would be to not approve it. Again, I think in my opinion it wasn’t a major request and we certainly didn’t anticipate a lot of work other than their expert opinion on what those items would be.  
Bird:  Regarding the federal money, I don’t believe anybody realized that this federal money, 95 percent of your federal money has the Davis Bacon wages, maybe five percent of it has the Buy America.  This was an afterthought that we got hit with.  Erstad already had – the only thing that I can see where he had extra changes in all of the specifications, he should not have had to change any of the drawings because you are going to get the same project, you are just going to make sure that it is made in America.  So I think he has got a little bit of legitimate cost in redoing the specifications and stuff because that was an after the fact and I would guess that if you went out on federal funded jobs, that 98 percent of them are not Buy America money, two percent might be Buy America.  The others come with the Davis Bacon and all that stuff.  
Escobar:  Was FTA mentioned in the contract before they began their design services?  Was it known that there was federal transportation administration funds associated to it?  

Pipal:  Yes.  Rhonda?

Jalbert:  The Buy America clause comes into effect for any contract for over $100,000.  So it is the total contract price – the building was estimated for over $1 million and I think it was originally estimated at $2 million and it was known at that time that any federal project over $100,000 does need to meet the Buy America requirements.

Escobar:  Follow up.  It is my understanding that it is any project associated with FTA funds, not necessarily federal funds, but specifically that department.  

Jalbert:  FTA requires in their clause anything over $100,000, but I think if you look at any other federal entity, in speaking with other engineers and stuff who design things for federal governments and other federal project managers, they all (inaudible). I don’t know what their amount is, but I am assuming it would be the same as the $100,000 but I am not 100 percent certain.

Escobar:  I put this on the table now.  Do we think our architect will ever look at the project the same and do we want to be that learning curve of paying this $18,000 because I guarantee you, the next federal project that they look at they are going to see FTA, they are going to research this and they are going to hire their attorney to make sure that they are following the correct guidelines.  They should have done it on this project and we shouldn’t be the scapegoat is my understanding.
Bird:  I am not standing up for it at all.

Pipal:  I have one as kind of an outsider comment.  This is part of the conversation that I had with Ms. Ford and that was the requirements that we have in managing the project to resubmit drawings and make sure that they are accurate with the public entities; there were some things that had to be done.  I wouldn’t guess that they are anything in the amounts that we are talking about here, but there were some things that we had to do and there is some ownership that they had to incur those costs. I agree with Member Escobar that – and in our meetings with Erstad they have said that there was some questions that should have been asked up front. But the federal guidelines are very explicit in who is responsible for how those monies are spent and it specifically states that the grantee is responsible for ensuring those things are – so while, you know, Mr. Escobar you are an architect and that is why I put you on the spot – you would assume full responsibility there and the federal guidelines are very explicit that the grantee has full responsibility for and making sure those funds are administered according to the CFR.  So maybe for clarification on that maybe – do you know Ms. Ford what we would have been required to do in terms of re-submittal and how that would relate to all of these costs?
Ford:  No, we have not.  Erstad has given us, as indicated in your packet, an itemized billing of all of their time, but it has not been split out.  Just for the (Inaudible) drawings and the re-specifications.  

Escobar:  I would like to add in that letter the additional $35,000 to $65,000 in design fees associate to design to Buy America that the architect proposes as fees that we should be anticipating and the statement that we make today on this initial $18,000 is going to take precedence as to how we handle the additional $35,000 to $65,000.  

Borton:  To ducktail to that comment, another consideration for your Board came up this morning in some of the comment from Wright Brothers that there is kind of an implication at Buy America and how it has or has not been properly administered may be a cause or a claim to clause of some delay, so if there is unforeseen, un-yet produced delay costs coming to you soon that might be tied to or claimed to be tied to a failure to understand or be able to implement Buy America.  Your action here today might implicate that too.  

Ford:  If I can just further explain that comment.  My understanding what his comments regarding delay are is the fact that if we can’t meet Buy America’s specifications on a particular product or specification then we have to go through a waiver process.  One of the things that we just realized or heard in the last meeting with the general contractor and as the over all team was that this could be a 30 day delay for trying to get these waivers approved.  So they have been working diligently with VRT to be able to get as many waivers in front of them as possible at this time.  But that is what he is referring to in the potential delay.  
Pipal:  I am not sure where I had heard it but maybe Rhonda can answer the question, but my understanding is that it is not the Federal Transit Authorities position to grant any waivers at this time.  I have heard that and I don’t remember in what conversations –

Jalbert:  FTA will not grant any waivers on (inaudible) projects.  This funding is not stimulus money, it is not borrowed money.  I did receive a list from Erstad of items that they wanted to know.  I submitted the list.  I have not submitted any waivers.  I have not been requested to submit any waivers.  But I did submit a list that I was going to follow up today on those – those are minor items.  I think I have provided a solution that I think should work is the – FTA purchases stuff up at Federal GSA accounts and there are electrical components that seem to be the major thing that is causing the delay and I suggested that they go onto the GSA website or contact Wesco or Platt or Grainger and they will know what is on the GSA account and to purchase those items.  Maybe not from those entities or vendors, but if that item is on the GSA, it meets the Buy America requirements.  So there are still a few outstanding items that they have questions on.  We feel that they are minor items and we have the question into the FTA and I hope to hear something by the end of the week.  
Pipal:  Member Basalone.

Basalone:  I am in full agreement with what Mr. Escobar is saying in regards to his analysis of this; however, based on the letter from Erstad I do have a question on some of their phrasing.  They say that we along with our consultants did track the actual time required to process and understand the Buy America provisions that were specifically added by VRT.  So are they implying that after they did all of their studies of Buy America and all of its provisions that VRT went back and ask that something be added that they didn’t have in their original plans that would then require to have additional expense and are we then acting as kind of the agent for VRT being that we are the primary funding source?

Lipschultz:  If I can respond to that?   That is their claim that is the Buy America’s provisions surfaced after the actual original bid package was drawn up.

Basalone:  All of the Buy America provisions were --?

Lipschultz:  All of the Buy America provisions were – just for background, Project Manager Ford and I met with Andy Erstad and Dave Ruby from Erstad Architects in December, I believe it was and presented and followed up that meeting with a letter from our counsel that – and yes it was in both in the letter and the meeting that again we fully rely on Erstad to be the expert; that throughout the process from the very beginning back in June or July when we were interviewing architects and hire Erstad there was total clarity that this project was for COMPASS and VRT and that the federal implications of that needed to be met and throughout that interview process Erstad reiterated to us that they had done federal projects and fully aware of what all of the requirements were.  So again I think I might feel differently if I thought that that was a little of a clouded issue, but I think we are totally transparent and knew what this project was for and that it was subject to federal guidelines and my belief that it was their responsibility, as Member Escobar stated too, that if they weren’t certain what those requirements were they needed to go out ahead of time and find it.

Basalone:  I am in full agreement on that.  I guess I was directing my question more to Rhonda.  Did VRT specifically ask that something be added after the fact after this transparency had occurred?

Jalbert:  I guess I would like to take a step back.  When Shaun Wardle was project manager, VRT submitted an email to Shaun Wardle with all of the federal (inaudible) and iterated in that which clauses was applied to this project and Buy America (inaudible) in there.

Basalone:  (Inaudible).

Jalbert:  That was in June and I am not quite sure when Erstad was brought on line, but it was right in the beginning at that time.  We received no questions – when the bid package came out and (inaudible) mentioned that Buy America was not included and that (inaudible) asked for more clarification (inaudible).

Bird:  That is what I was going to ask.  In the bid documents to the subcontractor and general contractor was it specifically mentioned Buy America?

Jalbert: In the original set that went out to bid Buy America was not included.

Bird: That is what I – when did Buy America get put into the bid documents?

Ford:  With the first addendum review that was sent out to – the original package was sent out to everybody for review and then when the first addendum went out that was sent out for review Rhonda noticed that the federal clauses that she had sent Erstad months before were not included and they were included at the last minute, they were sent out, we (inaudible) a lot of questions and red flags immediately –

Bird:  The addendum to the original bid package – everyone had marked on there that they had read the bid package?  What are we having a hold up for electrical and stuff if he knew he had to Buy America?  What is taking 90 days to get some shop drawings – get submittals through –?
Ford:  I think that is confusing the two issues. I think there is issues of (inaudible) overhead lines that is causing a lot of those delays.  But there is confusion in Buy America in general.

Bird:  They just sat here today and said the submittals and the shop drawings for electrical had been in for 90 days and they (inaudible). It can’t be all overhead power lines.

Jalbert:  There are some lines – there are electrical lines that are in question.  When we talked to the FTA attorney, if you take a lighting system, you know you have got the light, you have got the switch and you have the circuit breaker, each one of those is considered a component, a system, but the system is the total component, so if the (inaudible) comes from China it has to be -- it cannot merely be a (inaudible), it has to be modified and that is kind of open to interpretation and Erstad is -- my opinion is they are being very conservative in the definition of that and so there is like electrical tags, there has been some junction boxes, some light switch plate covers and those are minor items.  Light switch covers are all made in China and they do (inaudible) screening them in, not modifying them, you are merely assembling them; it is not passing Buy America.  So when you go onto the GSA website, the federal government and you go to like Wesco and you see that there are light switch plate covers there and Platt is the name brand they are (inaudible) Buy America and those are the ones you need to purchase.  So, Erstad just needs to review that website and also contact the vendors to see which items are on the (inaudible) and be able to submit that to Wright Brothers (inaudible).  

Lipschultz:  To Commissioner Bird’s question, the bid package didn’t specifically designate the requirements for Buy America but when I think we got to our final agreement with Erstad, the contract with them, (inaudible) but it totally references the need for compliance with all of the FTA provisions.  So there should not have been any confusion on their part in my opinion.   

Bird:  I think this is just a good example of why when contractors or subcontractors are busy they stay away from government work – I mean government inspections – 
Pipal:  I think to just go back to what Counsel Borton mentioned earlier about how we address this issue, one of the things that I would like to clarify is when an entity is going before city, county or whoever the approval entity is for drawings and those kinds of things that if they make changes and they ask their architect to make changes and the drawings to be resubmitted that their costs associated with that and that is the normal course of business regardless of the requirements; so in some cases and to Member Escobar’s point about the responsibility – if something else had  come up that required us to make a change to the documents and submit them to the city that we would ask our architect to do that and there would be some time that is allocated to make those changes and redo the submittal and I don’t think that those are nearly in the ballpark of what we are seeing in our packets, but what would be a normal course of business for us not related to the subject matter but to the process because in that case if we were – we would go the other direction from your point.  Would we not then pay them to make those changes if we requested them?  Not necessarily related to the subject matter but if we wanted to change and it had to be resubmitted per city code or whatever, we would ask the architect to make those changes and we would pay them for it.  Am I correct in that?

Escobar:  If there was an owner directed change there is often a change order associated to it or an adjustment to the contract.  Oftentimes that is associated to an hourly rate that has been already contractually agreed upon and a not to exceed estimate given by the architect.  The architect will then respond, if you want to make that change it is going to be approximately 20 hours at this rate and will have a not to exceed of this dollar amount and typically you get billed half to three quarters of what that not to exceed rate is; however, if there is a code issue that they missed and they have to change the documents because the Building Department picked up on the code issue, that doesn’t come on the burden of the owner, that is the burden of the architect to make sure that his plans all meet contract and a part of contract states that they will meet code.  So if it is owner directed it is typically a change order with a not to exceed cost.  

Pipal: So regardless of the subject matter if I could clarify – if we are talking about Buy America or if we changed our minds then they would submit something to that -- how long is it going to change the drawings and resubmit, correct?

Escobar: That is the way I see most architect offices work.

Pipal: Question for counsel. Is that taking us down a slippery slope because it was owner directed that we had to resubmit the plans based on changes --?

Borton:  I don’t necessarily believe it is owner directed.  In this situation in the simplest sense you contracted with an architect to provide and comply with “x” and if they provide you “y” and as a change to go back to “x” is really not a change.  It is really more a directive of the owner saying you are supposed to do “x” and the fact that you did “y” on your own that is on you; do “x”.  I don’t necessarily believe it is the position of MDC that MDC created and added new terms for Erstad to comply with.  

Pipal:  Thank you both very much.  After extensive discussion what is the pleasure of the Board?  

Escobar:  I move that we do not approve item 1 and item 3 as stated in Erstad Architect’s letter dated March 7th for the amounts of $18,149.50 and $2,975 and that we make it clear to the architect that it is not our intent to approve those as it was stated in the contract under item 36.4 federal changes “consultant shall at all times comply with all applicable FTA regulations, all state procedures and directives”.  

Jensen:  Second.

Pipal:  Further discussion?  

Roll Call Vote: Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Lipschultz, aye; Basalone, aye; Pike, aye; Pipal, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.  
8.
Ground Floor Discussion (Pipal/Ford):

Pipal: Did we have – as background for the Board have we met with the owners, Dayside Property and with Gwen and talked about a term and the implications – put your name on these Gwen – any implications of moving out and – I know that Gwen and this Board has been doing a lot of research and the details – Gwen if you want to take it or Ashley?

Runyon:  Gwen Runyon with RFP Properties.  Our meeting with the owners went well.  They are willing to extend our lease at a time for us to be able to complete the repairs on the building at the Bank of Cascades and to do that move, if that is the decision of the Board and they are willing to extend it until October 31st and December 31st also – they have been in communication with another tenant that is willing to take over the facility and that later – the October 31st or December 31st works well for them as well.  The July 31st date would have been a little too soon. So it appears that we would be granted an extension for our contract but we need to (inaudible) – I don’t know if we are ready to – if the Board is ready to do that or if they want to have further Ground Floor discussions regarding the new facility before making that decision.
Pipal: I think one other thing that we need to discuss is something that came up after the meeting last week and that was the discussion of whether or not we needed a general contractor to complete the work and I think what we found out in the interim was that there was an opportunity not to have to do that.

Ford: I did ask Gwen to put together a scope of what the cost would be of the cost for her to manage that as well and that is included in your packets today.

Borton:  For the size of this project – well I guess to even back up further because I don’t know how far you have gone with what TI’s you might want to incorporate into it, but you are going to have to bid it.  It is under $100,000, but you are going to have to bid it, you know, an informal bid of up to three qualified public works contractors.

Pipal:  For the –

Borton: For the project.

Pipal:  So what you are telling us is that we would have to have a general contractor?

Borton:  Correct.

Runyon:  Can you bid each individual work out?

Borton:  You can, Madame Chair.  Something for the Board to consider is just the administration of that process.  Assume everything is five times more complicated than it should be or you hope it to be.

Pipal:  We have had this conversation with Ms. Runyon about her experience in the contracting industry.  As she has a direct relationship with our current tenants and has been helping to formulate what the Ground Floor –how it fits into the market place we thought that there might be some value in having her fulfill those responsibilities as part of what she already does.  So, if she was going to manage that process and bid those projects --?

Borton:  If the scope – I am looking at the sheet that is in your packet that lists required items, altered items, extra items, what would be customary and not necessarily cost prohibitive at all is to bid it and get a general contractor to complete the project, have a base bid, have alternates based upon what TI’s you want to incorporate and then choose to select those or not do them and I don’t know your experience, but I just think it is a lot to undertake.

Pipal: Member Bird you had part of that conversation with us.

Bird:  You are getting into a lot of expenses that you are putting into a building that is obviously going to be tore down one of these days.  (Inaudible).  If you send it out for bid and then you have an architect fee to draw everything up for specifications and everything else and then pretty soon you are paying more for an architect than for the work being done and anymore architects don’t want to supervise the job that they are drawing.  I don’t know.  I don’t know why you can’t do it on a piece meal deal – I agree with Joe that there is going to be a lot of administrative – not so much administrative but (inaudible) – subs and get it taken care of.  I (inaudible) but I am sure not for putting a whole bunch of money into that building there.
Borton:  Another consideration along those lines and I don’t know if in the lease discussions there was included and the Ground Floor owners agreeable to successive 30 day extensions?

Ford:  We did discuss that in terms of October 31st being the anticipated move out date and then – but to give 30 day’s notice if we felt that that was not going to be accomplished.  

Borton:  The reason I bring up that point, even if it is successive by not using a GC, you have already seen that in any construction project that there is understandable delays rightful and it is just happens and you could really get into a pinch on a project if for whatever reason this doesn’t get completed by the end of December, the new tenants ready to move in, you are in limbo and your entire Ground Floor project is kind of an in between stage.  

Runyon:  If I can add something? If you take a look at the work items that we have.  The only thing that we have identified at this point is that the CZC is the only part that we are going to need from Jim Marsh.  Is that correct, Ashley?

Ford: I believe so based on our conversations with everybody else.

Runyon:  I did not get a communication (inaudible) yesterday afternoon.  Did you get an email (inaudible) from him (inaudible):

Ford:  No.

Runyon:  We had met yesterday with the Building Department.  We had the fire, electrical and we did a walk through with everybody.  We are going to need (inaudible) exterior or excuse me, exit signs, lighted exit signs on both doors and we are going to need a parking lot layout for ADA; if we do any HVAC work – we are not even sure if we have to do this work. The amounts that we have in there in the contract he is kind of assuming that because that the units are into their end of their natural life that they are not going to work and I asked him did you even fire it up?  No.  So the amounts that are in there you know right now is kind of a big question.  If we don’t need a new unit don’t buy a new unit.  That would as far as I know be the only other issue that we would need to have a permit for.  The plumbing issue, there may be some kind of permit in there, I don’t believe so.  Again, don’t know as far as the (inaudible), but other than that it is a matter of purchasing some items and having them repaired.  We have to do some concrete work to build a ramp at the back door.  We don’t have to do any repair work for the drive thru and we don’t have to take down the (inaudible) and the reality of it is is that it is a little bit of an eyesore, but we don’t have to do that stuff.  The sign out front (inaudible) the demolition permit, but literally I think for the most part (inaudible) – signage if that is what is required.  The scope of the work just doesn’t justify a general contractor.  It just does not.
Bird:  What sign are you talking about?

Runyon:  The monument sign out front.

Bird:  (Inaudible) supposed to have that down.  We can take care of that, right Anna?  The monument sign?  That is supposed to go – taken down? 

Canning:  If we can clarify “we can take it down”?  

Bird:  The bank has to take it down, don’t they?  The agreement was the bank has to take that down?  That is not a permanent site for them.  We have just been nice people.

Canning: Well my recollection, Commissioner Bird, is that when we did that modification that let the building stay-?  Remember that?  It was supposed to come down and I think that is when the sign came down -- when we did that modification to – I suspect that we didn’t remember the sign at that time, so probably left the sign up.  There is not a problem taking it down – I think I told Ashley I don’t think you even need a demolition permit.  I did want to say one other thing regarding the drawings necessary for the CZC, because you are not doing anything really, you would take a very minimal drawing.

Runyon:  A footprint basically.

Canning:  Yeah and that would be fine.  I suggested and it is not my call, it is Council’s call, but I have suggested (inaudible) the city and I would go to Council and waive the CZC and all of that.  But that would save MDC a little bit of money.  

Bird:  In my years of experience doing work on buildings and stuff very rarely when it is an existing building and it did change tenants did not be managed by a property manager – I think you can ask Mr. Lipschultz that on their building they don’t hire a general contractor to come in and change stuff – or anything like that it is the property manager.  I don’t know why we would want to pay 10 or 15 percent to a general contractor and then also have to pay 6, 7 or 8 percent or whatever it takes for a set of drawings.

Lipschultz: I agree with Mr. Bird.  I think there is a bigger question that I think needs to be put out to the Board. I think there is a question of does it make sense to move forward with the whole – I think if we go back to the original idea of the incubator project – I think we have a real success that came out of that and we facilitated the rehab of that building and I am not sure that would have happened (inaudible) a lot of people downtown.  Over this last year, we have had a lot of people come downtown utilizing that building for different events and a chance to introduce downtown. I think we have struggled with the idea of getting anybody to start up companies in that office space, it has been an issue.  I think as we look forward, if this project ends up $100,000, we look forward over the next two years and addition to whatever that capital cost is even if we take the cost of the rent out that we are currently paying, I think this will be a $50,000 a year cost to the MDC, so over the next two years it could be $100,000 to $150,000 in expense.  I just think we need to step back and say is that the best use of that money verses is there or does it make more sense to do an RFP for those sites and potentially have some funds available to put into infrastructure to get a private entity that would still reach that same objective and get people and activity downtown and getting those buildings back on the tax roles and I am just kind of putting that out there for consideration.  I think before we commit to doing the capital improvements to a building that as Mr. Bird said could potentially come down anyway – you know is this really what we want to do for the next couple of years and is that the best use of the money verses alternative uses?  Just a question.

Pipal:  And I also think that the information that we just got from Ms. Runyon is probably a lot – it is very different from the budget that we have before us in our packets and it may indicate a different investment than what we had thought we were facing.

Runyon:  Well as far as the budget that was provided – I would definitely (inaudible) required about that and again these were the numbers that were provided by CSHQA – the one thing that is not included in this budget that I was just made aware of is someone has offered to buy our phone system, but we have to – they need a budget – it looks like we (inaudible) for $8,000 phone system (inaudible) – we are looking at – that is the protocol for now, but we are still required to pay Qwest through our Time Warner contract.  If we were to go to a true voice over (inaudible) it is $100 and you plug it in and we might want to take advantage of that.  We could start – go to the voice over and that protocol right now at the Ground Floor and if we have the opportunity to sell those phones for $8,000 we might want to jump on that.

Jensen:  Do we know what we paid for those phones?  I think I remember (inaudible) I just want to make sure that –

Runyon:  My documents that I have had the phones included with the technology, so I had a number of different quotes that was in there.  I don’t know which one was actually taken. I looked at the one that was dated the latest, so I can assume that that was in there. I think it was $18,000, but the problem with the phone is that in order to use those phones we have to pay Qwest and I don’t know if that was really fully explained at the time that those phones were purchased.  On a true voice over internet protocol phone you just plug it into your internet.  But we are paying (inaudible) on a monthly basis and that includes – they in turn pay Qwest for our phone lines.  

(Inaudible)


Pipal:  Is there anything that we haven’t covered --?

Basalone:  Just a couple of clarifications.  I fully agree with Gwen (inaudible) the ongoing plans for the property and I seem to recall at a prior meeting (inaudible)l to mention that currently we are paying $33,000 a year for the lease of the facility on Idaho street.  But I guess my bottom line question would be and I fully agree with you Gwen what you are saying about the minimal cost of moving in, I think it should be as minimal as possible – if they are less than $33,000 then MDC comes out ahead if you are in for a year, so it could (inaudible) a concern about the ongoing cost.  If you are in for two years, we save an additional $33,000 – the prospects of developing that property right now are probably minimal, you are not going to do in the next year or so; so it would make economic sense for the Board to fund anything less than $33,000; plus you have the additional benefit of not only having that building occupied, but new tenants on Idaho Street in the existing facility which are bringing more people into the downtown area. So I see that as kind of a win, win, if the costs are less than $33,000; then as far as the costs are concerned, I keep hearing this kind of disconnect between the city and MDC in terms of the ownership of that building.  MDC is a part of the city – 
Pipal:  No.

Basalone:  MDC is not a part of the city – can MDC utilize those city services like maintenance services on a contractual basis?  Can you in affect buy city services like an electrician to go replace something electrical as they would here in city hall for instance?

Pipal:  We have in the past and I will just use the accounting as an example, but part of the problem that we have had as an entity and this is not necessarily related to contracting the city for services, but urban renewal districts have been criticized for being an extension of the cities for public works departments ways for the Mayor’s to get something done and all sorts of other accusations and so what we have really tried to do is separate ourselves at every opportunity because the environment doesn’t necessarily allow us to partner with the city the way we could really use those, but in order to protect our ability to make sure we are operating above board we have tried to separate ourselves.
Basalone:  The perception (inaudible).

Bird:  (Inaudible).  My biggest concern on going ahead with this building is you know it is a building that we bought – sure we thought we would maybe turn it or something – I think we need to move in there and get it to be a viable building like the Ground Floor.  I would rather spend money on property we own and like Dan said that gives the day people – if we fix that – we pay for the remodel on theirs so they have got a nice building on the first floor.  I don’t know why we have to have a general contractor do it.  I think we have a property manager in place.  I mean how hard is it to call some people and find out the cost or call a person to get glass replaced or something like that.  I would like to see us go ahead with it. I mean, I don’t want to spend a small fortune.

Borton:  The general contractor decision or not is yours.  The only thing that you don’t get to choose is going through the whole bidding process.  That is one of the distinctions that the private business can go hire people to fix things.  You can still do that here, but so long as you comply with the bidding.

Bird:  Have three carpet people come in Joe and give you a bid – or if the property manager says I want a carpet in this (inaudible) – or your heating and air conditioning, call three of them in and I can guarantee they are going to tell you different than what the architect will.

Pipal:  I think maybe we would just look at – Gwen, just look at everything that needs to be done.  What has to be done first and do those first and if they are $1,000 normal expenses that we would incur correct – as long as we stayed – maybe there is a different level that we would want to look at for this project – what is the threshold?  If MDC were to just put out an RFP what is that normal threshold?

Borton:  For the bidding?

Pipal: Yes, to have to go to bid.

Borton:  $25,000.  Under $100,000 is informal.  
Runyon:  $25,000.  Okay.

Pipal: So perhaps we would want to lower the threshold just a little to make sure that we pass the smell test.  So basically –

Runyon:  The plumbing -- $4,700 plumbing and that is just way too much.  From what he explained in the documents, I don’t know where he got that.  I started with his numbers just because he had done some work and they were better than anyone else’s numbers because they were there –

Ford:  And it was just pure estimates at that point.

Runyon:  I did the carpet and the paint, signage and everything below the carpet (inaudible) numbers put together.

Bird:  I would just make everything look above table which we always want it to be.  On regards of whether you are replacing carpet or whatever you are doing, just get three bids and those people can give it to you in two or three days and not only with having three bidders are you going to get a good price, I think it keeps everybody honest.

Runyon: Well you are going to get a good – I mean the reality is if they have to go through a general contractor then they have to do something else – I mean they know the difference.  The last discussion about the project is they know what is involved dealing with a government agency.  They are going to price (inaudible).

Pipal:  Would the Board like – to concerning (inaudible) direction to go forward along these lines that we are talking about with the --?  Member Escobar?

Escobar:  I just want to ask about this item because what it looks like work is outlined at a rate of 15 percent of the project cost and to me that is a cost plus contract at 15 percent on top of cost, which is actually more than what you would get – I mean maybe if the contractor were an at risk contract in a situation like that they would be between 15 and 20 percent.  Now for a cost plus contract you should be more at 5 to 8 percent. So I am already looking at the fees to have Gwen manage this project as being more than what we would pay a general contractor or maybe I am missing something.  I don’t know.

Runyon: They still would have their administration overhead costs in there.  The reality of it is it doesn’t take anything – to meet a guy at a building to give me a $400 quote for some material prices does not take any less time than to meet a guy a building to get a carpet bid.  So the scope – the dollar scope is less, but the time it takes and the number of minutes to the building are (inaudible) regardless of the dollar amount.  So the – considered that maybe since I am currently under contract there is a portion of my project management that I am doing for the Ground Floor now – I have two distinct areas that I am doing – administration for the building – do the billing, do the collections and you know meet people up there when the door doesn’t work and get it open and things like that and then I have my marketing aspect of it.  It is possible that I could suspend my marketing which I don’t know if that is necessarily a good thing to do, but that is something that I could do as a way through this process.  I have time to do both, but you may not want me doing both.  So that is another option.

Escobar:  I would rather see Gwen do what she does which is property management and have a contractor come in and handle holding sub contracts, understanding the process of government paperwork, not having to utilize our services to answer questions, I don’t see a dollar savings in this proposal to justify pulling Gwen off of something – we need marketing.  We need her focus in marketing to find more people to come into that building or this building and I think the contractors – there is a reason why we have general contractors.  

Bird:  Yeah, the 5, 6 or 7 percent or whatever it is on a small job like this – I am sure they are going to want around 10 percent for a general contractor – not only that you are going to give her 15 percent – if the bid is a $1,000 that is what she is going to – she is going to get paid 15 percent of that – if it is a $1,000 to a general contractor you get another 7 or 8 percent added for his overhead to run it through, to process it.  With a big job I would say yes.  But this is a job that somebody isn’t going to spend that much time on.  The guy you hire is going to do the work.  They are going to open it up and make sure he does it.  I don’t think it takes a rocket scientist to do something like that.  If there was more work involved I would say yeah get a general contractor but on a small job like this they are not going to do it for 5 or 6 percent and you are going to pay their overhead and stuff on everyone of those bids.  

Escobar: Follow up.  If we are looking at a general contractor at 8 to 10 percent, plus an additional 7 percent for overhead we are talking 17 percent where we can put the risk in the general contractor’s hands verses the 15 percent for somebody who isn’t as familiar with the process and we need her time focused elsewhere as far as our mission for what this space is supposed to be.  

Runyon:  If I could add something Jim. I was a partner with a general contracting firm that did both public works and I have a complete understanding of the work (inaudible).
Lipschultz: I tend to agree with Commissioner Bird and as I look through the list we are really only talking about five subs; carpet, plumber and electrician and carpenter.  I guess the question is so do you think this is out of the scope of your project management or I guess I am not clear why this would be extra?

Runyon:  Why it would be extra from the original contract?  Well this is a different – like I said my contract right now what I proposed was to do the administration and the accounting and the tenant relationship as well as marketing. That really is what I do.  Like I said I don’t really want to suspend my marketing, but we could do that. We could make that decision.  It would be about (inaudible) and as far as the – the reality of it is that if we have to get a general contractor to do this I don’t think that it takes away from any of your (inaudible).  When you do a remodel, when you have someone come in you are telling them hey this is the scope of what I need done and this is the state of the building and well we don’t have any (inaudible), so the contractor is going to say well I am going to run into every single problem that I can imagine because if I don’t put in a number to it I am going to get (inaudible).  So when they are bidding the project they are going to assume that everything has to get done, well, it may not.  But the plumbing it may not be a $4,700 deal.  Very likely not, but your contractor is going to have it in there.  
Lipschultz:  Admin -- that agreement for you is not an hourly agreement – don’t read anything into this question but can you give us a sense of how much time is currently put into admin? 

Runyon:  I would say as far as – the admin probably is less than a third and the marketing would be about two thirds.

Lipschultz:  What does that mean?  I guess I am not clear.  Is that ten hours a week, five hours a week, twenty hours a week?

Runyon:  Well, some weeks it is not much and some weeks it is a lot.  I would say from the way I look at it I would expect at least about 10 hours a week if not more for Ground Floor – that is kind of in my schedule for what I do.  That is about what I put in – 10 to 15 hours a week.  Some of it is there.  I have a separate office that I work out of and I spend time going to events and networking that way.  That is how I manage my time.

Lipschultz:  Again, I think we are only looking at five bids on this thing.  I wonder if there is an approach that if we have a subcommittee to review bids and then maybe between Gwen and some little assistance from Ashley if we can just kind of within the scope of our current resources try and get – is it reasonable to get it done that way?  It is a question.  I think if we do go to a contractor and say 15 percent that is another $8,000 or $10,000 and maybe there is just a way to get it done with our current resources.
Basalone:  Based on our original premise that we want to keep this as minimal as possible in terms of costs?  I believe and what I am hearing that using Gwen as the conduit to review these bids is the appropriate way to go and I would submit that my experience with general contractors of any kind is that it is kind of self fulfilling prophecy where you say it is going to be $25,000, it is $25,000 plus any costs overruns in terms of finding other things that need to be done.  So I would say that we are looking at the most minimal approach here and as far as the use of Gwen’s time, anytime you have a transition from one facility to another there is going to be a disruption of your regular services, you are not going to be able to do marketing, accounting and so forth while you are moving from one office to another.  So I think in the normal course of events some of those regular hours are going to have to be in the new facility making sure it is up and running and I don’t foresee in looking at these activities that need to be done that they are really time consuming activities – they are not things that are going to take months and months to complete.  They are like a day project at the most.  So I think that I would not be as concerned about the use of Gwen’s time.  I think she will get it done, get it up and running and  an office to use (inaudible).

Jensen:  We have got the bank building subcommittee and Commissioner Lipschultz’s point is couldn’t they work with Gwen on coordinating those (inaudible) in deciding what really needs to happen.

Runyon: Who is on that committee?

Pipal:  If the Board wants to see that happen we could certainly approach things that way.  

Bird:  I think that is a good idea.  I just want to see that building being used (inaudible).  

Jensen:  I was going to say that the first decision needs to be whether we are moving or not before we decide how we are going to move forward with improvements on the building.  Because I think that decision needs to be made sooner rather than later and then we can work out exactly what –

Runyon:  We told them that we would have a document that we would be prepared to sign the extension and do that after this meeting (inaudible).  We have to have a decision today.

Pipal:  I think what I hear the Board saying is that the bank subcommittee could sit down and really take a hard look at this and decide what recommendation they would make in going forward on the repairs and what needs to happen on the Bank of the Cascades building, but in the meantime we do have to look at item 9 and that is the extension from July 31st to October 31st and then month to month through December.

Jensen:  Do we need a motion for (inaudible) that portion of it?

Pipal:  To turn it over to the bank subcommittee, I don’t think so.  

Jensen:  Do we need a motion for extending the contract to October 31st?
Pipal:  Item 9.

9.
Ground Floor Lease Agreement Decision (Pipal/Ford):

Borton:  In response to that at this point all you really need is direction.  It sounds like what you are discussing is that it be brought back to the Board for their approval a couple of things – one would be a lease extension agreement that is consistent with the deadlines provided that has the Dayside’s signature on it, present it to the Board, I would presume, at the next meeting – the second document which it sounds like I would suggest you would want to bring at the next meeting as well is something that specifies if Gwen is going to be doing the management of this project; some clarity on roles, responsibilities and deadlines and confirming obligations with regards to certain public bidding and governmental compliance requirements which are non negotiable obligations obviously.  So I think those two documents would come back to the Board for your review and approval at the next meeting from what you are describing in your discussions.  

Jensen:  Can the subcommittee in the interim while working on this, is there anyway for them to go and get those bids and just say this needs to be done and this needs to be done and get those bids and come back with an actual here is what needs to be taken care of and here is who is going to handle the contracting of that or whatever it may be and that way we can actually move forward or am I cutting a step out that needs to happen.  
Borton:  It sounds – if I am tracking you right it sounds like maybe a step is being skipped because I understand the committee would be working trying to decide what specific items would be done or at least you would make that recommendation that 1-7 are the specific improvements or repairs that you want to complete, you would then – you wouldn’t put those out to bid, but provide Gwen or the Board that list and say here is what we think that we need to bid and then that process would go forward.

Runyon:  Can I clarify?  The column that says required – those are items that have to be done except for the carpet and pretty much in order to get – the carpet is discretionary, the signage and we will want to move our sign.  The carpet is discretionary and the plumbing repairs and HVAC, those are the two big questions.  But the other things have to be done.  

Jensen:  (Inaudible) occupancy (inaudible)?

Bird:  (Inaudible) 2008.

Pipal:  Well I think before we – I think we could have the bank subcommittee look at these things, Member Jensen, and get well on our way to making some decisions, but we don’t want Gwen put in the position where she is operating outside, so I think we could look at some of those things in the interim, but something that clarifies what her role and responsibility would be at the next meeting.  So we wouldn’t necessarily skip a step, but I appreciate and I think we all appreciate (inaudible) and the reason our two new Board Members that are here is a need to get moving on some of these things and making sure we are pushing the envelope a little bit to try and move quickly instead of delaying the decision.  

Basalone:  If the bank subcommittee need additional help I would be glad to volunteer to serve on that.

Ford:  Sold.

Pipal:  What is our requirements and that we always have been limited to?

Ford:  We have to stay under a quorum.  So a quorum is five now and so we can have the additional board member and you are more than welcome to join us.  Thank you.  

Runyon:  I think the first course of action that I think we need to do is get someone out there to do a maintenance and change the filters and (inaudible) out the HVAC – I mean we are operating without any real kind of knowledge right now.  I mean we are making some pretty big assumptions.  If it is going to be – I think those kinds of things we should proceed with and if it doesn’t have to be replaced it is going to need to be maintained, so let’s get a maintenance in there, its probably never been done since you guys did the building and let’s see what we are really looking at.  

Pipal:  Lets get a bank subcommittee meeting set up and then we will provide some information to counsel for clarification and then also the agreement for the lease.  Gwen do you quickly want to cover the sponsorship discussion?     
10. Ground Floor Sponsorship Discussion (RFP Properties):

Runyon:  (Inaudible) is coming to Boise and it is a national organization – were you able to pull that out?
Ford:  I can’t get through the firewall.

Runyon:  It is similar to kickstand as it is a launching point for new businesses start up innovator.  It is a crash course weekend, they come in Friday night and they have an open mind and they can all present their different start up ideas, there is a judges panel, there is an experts panel and they bring it to them and then they pick a number of different project they spend all day Saturday working on and experts will sit down and go through everything with the entrepreneurs and then on Sunday they start working on the prototypes and it is a real hands on organization.  They have never been to Boise.  This is their first time they have come to Boise. Steven Henneger is putting it on and Tribune Media approached me about being a sponsor for it.  They are all over it.  They have a sponsorship level of $250 that I would like to take Ground Floor to the event.  I can go to the event as an interested business person.  The cost is $50 and included in the $250 if you would prefer I would do it that way.  Sometimes it is a little problematic going to some of those events as a vendor because you don’t really have a lot of opportunity to talk (inaudible) trying to grab a hand wherever you can and introduce yourself.  I am more than willing to do it that way also.  I also wanted to get a banner made that said the Ground Floor. I will be able to use it over and over again.  I have a proposal to authorize that.  

Pipal:  Questions for Gwen?  No questions?  

Bird:  Would we need to act upon the sponsorship and what is the total cost?

Runyon:  The total cost is $250.

Bird:  That doesn’t include the banner does it?

Runyon:  Oh, I don’t know the banner –

Bird:  You can probably get a nice vinyl banner for $5 at this size –

Pipal:  The last one I ordered was an 8 foot and it was trade show for a table front and it was a little over $100 in full color – the vinyl, the nice ones with the rivets.  

Bird:  What do you want to enact upon just the sponsorship?

Pipal:  If that is the pleasure of the Board.

Bird:  You just want to go to some trade show, you ought to have a banner.  

Pipal:  Would they allow us to put it up as part of our sponsorship?

Runyon:  Yeah.  That would be table top – (inaudible) on the website that we are a sponsor and then I get to have a little blog piece on the website.  

Pike:  I guess that is a reasonable way to get our name out there and that banner we can use over and over again.  So the sponsorship and banner is about $350 is that –

Pipal:  That fits the number probably.
Jensen:  I move that we support the action to have sponsorship for the event and including a banner to a not to exceed amount of $400.

Pike:  Second.

Pipal:  It is money so do we need a voice call?

Borton:  Yeah, roll call vote.

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar?

Escobar:  Not hearing what the motion was I choose not to vote.

Roll Call Vote Continued:  Lipschultz, aye; Basalone, aye; Pike, aye; Pipal, aye.

Pipal:  Member Escobar abstained as he was out of the room for a moment.

SIX AYES.  ONE ABSTAINED.  MOTION CARRIED.

Pipal:  For the members of the Board and I am looking at the rest of the agenda that we have in front of us and I really, though I don’t want to put off some of the discussions, particularly the one about the branding scope, but I don’t know that we have time to do it justice.

Ford:  I have some urgent items too.  

Borton:  My sections are very short, I would be five minutes.  I can explain why.

Pipal:  We are going to time everybody.  I think we probably better move the destination downtown discussion and Ashley is cringing.

Ford:  I am being put in a position of not being able to move forward and direct those and this is a big deal.  I also have several items under my PM report that are really urgent and need some direction before the next Board meeting.  The other Board meeting is already pretty loaded.

Pipal: Then we will plow through.  Public relations report.
11. Public Relations Report (Red Sky PR):

Biggs: Good morning Commissioners.  A quick run through of our monthly report.  I think I talked about it at the previous meeting and a lot of our focus for the last month was along the launch of the Meridian Urban Market and got some good traction there.  The remainder of the month we have been working with Project Manager Ford on (inaudible) content on (inaudible) website.  I am not as far along as I had hoped to have been in content, but we will continue to push that forward this month and by the end of the month we should have that website up and running.  Kind of a quick recap.  One of the items beyond our website focus for June that we would like to get in the newsletter in talking about the Board changes and newest additions and as well promoting the new online (inaudible) and have that website ready to go.  The next agenda item, whatever we talk about, whatever (inaudible) from branding (inaudible).  Any questions from the Board?

Jensen:  When will the website be up and ready for (inaudible) to the public?

(Inaudible)

Ford:  Madame Chair and Mr. Jensen, it may be actually sooner.  It depends on how quickly they get – they are in the process of (inaudible) so if it doesn’t look too bad when all of the content is copied over from the existing sites we may go into a soft launch realizing there is still going to be gaps in information that is still under construction at that point, so we are waiting on that feedback from Vallis at this point.  So it may be sooner than that.  

Pipal:  Do you want to just continue on?

Biggs:  Sure.     
12. Destination: Downtown Branding Scope Discussion (Red Sky PR):

Biggs: For the messaging item and for some background one of the destination downtown priorities that came out (inaudible) urban market was looking at how to brand the downtown into an urban renewal market.  Our principal of Red Sky has been involved in a number of years, so we leveraged a lot of her insights and background with the different branding and the related branding efforts that have been going on with MDC and the city throughout the year (inaudible) reset buttons and start from scratch and I want to recognize was has been done today and sit down and just evolve the destination downtown brand (inaudible) since destination downtown is more of the master plan and over time it would phase out -- the theory is to come up with a good brand that really represents downtown and what the urban renewal is really about and start tying it into signage to kiosk and just over all branding downtown – so the feedback we received from (inaudible) downtown and enabled us to come back with more of a solid scope of what we see to be the key components and any additional costs.  So (inaudible) in the packet and we see this breaking down into three different things.  One is the community and stakeholder engagement and holding branding sessions and getting (inaudible) from key owners, key players in terms of the Chamber of Commerce, City of Meridian, MDC, people who live and work here, business owners and hosting a couple of those sections in conjunction with Meridian Urban Market and other public events and materials that start telling about the process and encourage them to respond (inaudible).  The next phase would be refining that message (inaudible) and that is where you would engage a graphic design firm to help us with (inaudible) – one of our colleagues at Red Sky prior to her engagement to us worked for the world winner games, led the markets there and (inaudible).  Her expertise in marketing and branding and then also engage a third party to do graphic design and as you identify the things like kiosks and (inaudible) that would be part of the over all presentation and deliverables from the graphic designer (inaudible) and then designs with kiosks (inaudible).  So those are kind of the three key elements at the end of the day with what we see in terms of what we see those costs would be (inaudible).  The hard costs of developing some of the materials for community outreach and the staff involved for managing some of the public events and (inaudible) between $10,000 and $15,000 (inaudible). Our estimates and (inaudible) – world winner games – and then there would be some additional work on our end.  (Inaudible).

Pipal:  Questions from the Board.

Escobar:  I appreciate the proposal and that you laid everything out very simply so I can understand it and I think it fits perfectly with what our goals are with destination downtown.  I think everything I see I am a go; the timeframe, the costing is reasonable; my only question would be for counsel.  Are we able to just grant this scope of work to Red Sky or would we have to go out to bid on that.  

Borton:  You are fine with the diligence you are pursuing to grant it as is.  

Lipschultz:  At least pieces of this I think at least my assumption were part of the overall marketing and was in the scope of the marketing and how does that impact from an hours standpoint on a regular marketing work and how is this different from what the original engagement is?

Biggs:  I wouldn’t say that it is entirely different and we talked about it as staff manpower and timing involved (inaudible) – this was including trying to include as much of this into our existing budget, but we see additional (inaudible) especially in the brand design and those elements and that is beyond what we have in house (inaudible).  As always with our agreement and our work and bill only for what we provide in terms of hours (inaudible).  

Pike:  The branding is something that I (inaudible) involved in and I would like to see more community involvement and then maybe having a logo contest (inaudible) the schools in this area and those who live in the area and have ideas about this area, getting that as opposed to hiring a graphic designer (inaudible) and maybe get an idea and expand on that, but I see the expansion on the Board (inaudible) getting those ideas and working with our PR people to get moving, otherwise this is going to be a very long arduous process and we are not going to have our brand for years.  Lets get this moving is kind of my idea (inaudible).  

Ford:  If I can also let the newer Board Members know that one of the big discussions we had and why we made this a priority project is that we wanted significant input and buy in not only from the City of Meridian, but also the Chamber of Commerce and the businesses as well; so there will be significant stakeholder involvement, which again goes beyond the scope that Red Sky has for their current monthly engagement with this Board as well too (inaudible) help stand out a little bit more and in previous meetings we have talked about having a presence at the Meridian Urban Market and those are things that go above and beyond what we expect Chad to do on a day to day, month to month basis for MDC.  Commissioner Pike I think that is a great idea and those are the sorts of things that we want to hear and look forward to having engaged work on that. Thank you.  

Pipal:  So what would we need to move forward on this issue?  

Ford:  I could direct Red Sky to put together their standard letter of agreement that was used for their yearly contract with MDC and bring that back to the Board for approval at the next meeting and then in the mean time start trying to get meetings scheduled with the stakeholders and especially the Chamber and the city officials and start developing that list so that we can start moving forward because obviously until we start moving forward with this branding session, way finding and signage and other initiatives that we have wanted to undertake as a Board are not going to move forward.  


Bird:  I have got one request on this.  A great idea, Ashley.  When they get their proposal put together I want it to go to our legal so they can compare what we agreed and signed on the contract – I love this stuff – when we hired the PR people, I thought – some of this stuff they are wanting to charge us for now was part of that original agreement.  It seems like every time you sign a contract, up front yeah, we all agree with it and then all of sudden you start getting all of these extras added to it.  

Ford:  Commissioner Bird that is not a problem and that is actually standard protocol for how we do all the contracts.  My understanding from the contract for the PR this year, the budget was significantly reduced from last year and there was the level of expectations that certain services would be cut this year as the Board was trying to be more cost conscious and I will let Commissioner Lipschultz or Commissioner Jensen correct me if that is incorrect.  But it sounded like the scope was scaled back for PR this year based on fiduciaries.  

Lipschultz: The other thing that we might want to do is – Chad when we first engaged with Red Sky and I think it was probably the note on 2008, we had kind of had a positioning and branding workshop – I am sure Mr. Bird remembers this – we kind of sat back for half a day – it might be good if you could pull the notes from that out and maybe resubmit those to the Board since we have so many new members, just so we –I mean I thought we did some pretty good work there in terms of deciding – surfacing some ideas on a direction, which was very much related to branding – just so we don’t go through that same process all over again – it would be totally redundant.  It would be just good to refresh everybody’s memory on what has already been done.

Biggs:  We definitely have that.  Jessica has that (inaudible) and by all means, I will – again we will do everything within our budget that we can and be as cost effective as possible.  

Basalone:  So that we don’t lose what Member Pike just mentioned about involving the schools – in the proposal is there going to be some reference how to do some additional community outreach and specifically the schools, being that they are out of session now and how might that be done in a timely fashion.  

Biggs:  We can get some ideas around (inaudible) but with that being said, a community online might be a good outreach – 

Basalone:  (Inaudible).

Pipal:  I think if we had in that letter of agreement a list of maybe potential resources, including but limited to cover some of that.  So we will have that standard letter of agreement drawn up and given to counsel for review and then obviously when presented to just clarify whether or not those items are clearly articulated in the current contract (inaudible) on our next agenda.     
13. On-Call Engineering Services RFP Discussion (Borton/Ford):

14. Resolution 11-009 Authorization of On-Call Engineering Services RFP (Borton):

Borton:  Items 13 and 14 we will talk about together if that is okay?

Pipal:  Yes.

Borton:  Briefly the prior on call engineering meeting that this Board went through and maybe Craig Slocum might have been the only person around – it was back around 2006 or 2007 and that has expired.  It is time to renew those, send out a new RFQ to obtain submittals for engineering services and the landscape of who even provides those services has changed greatly in the last two to three years.  It is time to do that this summer. I don’t suggest you take action on it today. I think the prudent course – I have provided in the packet a sample RFQ that can be submitted for you to review and take some time to look at it and also a resolution that outlines a process of what was similar to what you used before to make this selection. I guess one of the only distinctions for the Board to give some direction on is – my presumption is you want to continue with the prior structure where you would have three on call engineers ideally that you could then rotate around as you have done in the past.  It is not required.  If that is the direction?  I believe that is what is drafted here makes reference to selecting a single one.  I can make easy changes to incorporate the concept of rotated around and beyond that everything is of similar structure to how they did it before and what we would be looking for at your next Board meeting is for this Board to take action on approving the final RFQ to be published and approve the resolution at that time outlining the direction.  You will see in there it makes reference to maybe structure including the administrator in reviewing, interviewing and providing feedback.  So I think it is an important process that I would not want you to vote on today and quite frankly you are fine voting on it at your next meeting. If you have any questions in the meantime, give me a call.

Bird:  Mr. Borton, I have one question on the scoring.  I think we have done it within the city – firms that have an office in Meridian have a little bit higher score. I would like to see that (inaudible).  After all it is their tax dollars that we are using.  As far as I am concerned having one would be fine with me instead of three.  (Inaudible).  Right up front they know that they either do the job or if they can’t do the job then get somebody there to do it for them.  I would like to see local businesses – local should have a little preference, Meridian, should have a little preference over offices in Boise and that area.  

Borton: In response to that and I am glad you bring that up.  I did some research on what the city does do and they do generally incorporate the ten percent over all score if they are located in the city limits.  That is easy to incorporate.

Bird: That should be an amendment?

Borton: Correct that would be an amendment to the scoring structure that you see in the draft before you.

Pipal:  Any other questions?  Mr. Borton, please continue.
15. Façade Improvement Legal Analysis (Borton):

Borton:  A follow up to our earlier discussion on the façade improvement program.  I believe in your packet – what we have provided and this is finally closing the loop on your existing façade improvement program, you are not necessarily deciding to have one or not that is already there.  But what we are doing is clarifying and kind of defining the scope of what can and can’t be done.  What this is addressing is the two baskets of funds, potentially available for the three types of improvements that the Board is authorized – the site improvements, the canopy improvements and façade improvements.  None of that has changed to the documents before you.  What we are accounting for is the ability to fund a potential application through CDBG funds, which there is a pending application to reinstitute funding for the next year or general TIF funds, the increment findings of funds that we have.  We have through this before in prior years and even again this year – the distinction between how those funds can and can’t be used. What this application update does it is allows a particular application to come forward and potentially tap resources out of either fund and it is extremely fact specific.  I sent off to, I believe, the two members of the façade improvement committee kind of a sketch outline on how the process would run.  Using the application that has been provided, an application would be submitted to the administrator to MDC and provided to the committee to review and I would review it as well.  The distinctions we would be looking for is the source of funds requested in the public purpose.  There is different requirements as you know with regards to how TIF funds verses how community block grant funds can be spent. But the committee would review those on a case by case basis and see what may or may not qualify.  Because there are instances where I believe you can have your TIF funding allocated towards a façade improvement.  That committee would then make a recommendation to the Board based upon that analysis.  If the Board disagrees and says no they don’t like it, it is done.  If the Board approves the committee’s recommendation, it is not authorizing the expenditure of any funds, it is authorizing that committee to go with that and that user and trying to come to an end participation agreement.  Which would outline the specific requirements that would ensure that MDC’s funds are spent properly and that all checks and balances are included prior to any obligation.  That agreement would then come back to the Board for a review and approval and you can up it or down it at that time.  So, the process is refined, the application is improved and I believe in speaking with the administrator this would be linked and available on the website by the end of the month when it is completed and then the committee is off and running awaiting applications to come in.  

Ford: One of the things that I would like to do is try and promote the program once we have everything settled and we understand what we have from a funding perspective from CDBG and then what we have from a budget perspective from our general budget, but really start pushing that out to business owners.  
Bird:  With our funding – just our standard budget – Joe we don’t have to enforce the Davis Bacon and all that kinds of stuff?

Borton:  That is correct.  

Bird:  Then when we get into CDBG funding then we do?

Borton:  Correct.

Bird:  I was quite shocked that last night (inaudible) – that we were given 40 for this deal and not giving anything for the Nine Mile deal – and us fund more out of ours on this because the one application that we had the guy backed down because of the Davis Bacon costing more – it would have cost him to do it with our help because of the Davis Bacon.

Ford:  I was hoping you were going to call me up last night because they didn’t allow me to testify last evening.

Bird: Oh, I didn’t know if you wanted to.

Ford:  Well I did, but they were allowing people to come up and plead their case only if they got asked a question.

Bird:  Come back in two weeks.  I was just absolutely floored that they would give that for façade and turned the other deal down because—while we are on this and get it out there and get some of these people using it –

Ford:  Agreed.

Bird:  We could do so much for some of these old buildings – we have got to get it out there to get it sold, but I would prefer to take some of this stuff and move it around where we are not dealing with federal dollars.

Pipal:  Ms. Ford did you ever find out what was the reasoning on the recommendation?

Ford:  Yes, and this is one of the things that I wanted to talk about in my PM report because I need some direction from the Board.

Pipal:  Well, maybe what we should do – are you finished Mr. Borton?

Borton:  The only other action if the Board deems it necessary is you have, I believe, the amended application and grant requirements in your packet, is that correct?

Ford: A separate attachment.

Borton:  It is just a motion to approve the utilization of the new application and grant requirements going forward.  I can walk through those if anybody wants me to do so.  By way of brief background Madame Chair the document before you is not reinventing the wheel necessarily, it is of similar structure to what the Board is utilizing or at least prior approved in how it was structured and I can walk through some of the changes if you would like.  

Lipschultz:  Is there language in here that deals with matching grants or what percentage of the project that it is – I am not seeing it?

Borton:  What you will see in the grant requirements – what you had before because the sole source of funds was the block grant funds, which you then can require a match and the grant program specifics, A and B both still include the language from before that states these funds must be matched by the applicant.  The reason those two are included is in almost every case – just about – we will say every case and that application for either A or B the sole source for those funds is going to be block grant funds. It is hard ever to imagine one of those being eligible for TIF fund allocation. Because it is block grant funds you can require a match and what you will see in C one of the changes that we did to broaden the scope of C is potentially the source of funds to provide for C can come from block grant funds or potentially TIF funds and one of the general overriding issues that need to be meet for your general funds to be allocated to a façade improvement program is that it meets a public purpose and that a benefit to a private user is ancillary at best.  In order to accomplish that if it is funded by block grants this Board on a case by case can direct that matching funds be provided. If however, this Board determines that the source of funds for that improvement is general TIF funds and that specific improvement is for a public purpose, I believe asking that private applicant to match the funds for a true public purpose would be inconsistent with the Board’s finding that (inaudible) public purpose.  Does that make sense?
Lipschultz:  If we utilize our regular increment revenues that we cannot stipulate any percent? We would need to pay 100 percent?

Borton:  That would be my recommendation and the reason being is if it is based upon a finding that in that instance the benefit to be provided is truly a public benefit, so applicant “x” isn’t getting justified benefit for his specific site – if it was a private benefit you general funds would be eligible to be spent on.  So it seemed a bit inconsistent for you to say you are not benefiting yourself privately, you are benefiting the public, but we want you to kick in privately and fund part of it.  You are allowed to do so and the word may is included rather than shall.  

Lipschultz: I guess I am not clear on how that differs?  We voted to put some funds to the sidewalk improvement over by the Church, Ashley – the private entity the Church is paying for part of that project?  If there were a façade improvement project of $100,000, wouldn’t the Board have the flexibility to say well we are only to allocate $20,000?  What you are saying is we couldn’t require them to do the other 80, but we could limit our allocation of funds?

Borton: What we did is basically just broaden the scope to provide you the flexibility and it says the Board may require that funds be matched by the applicant.  But it is not required.  Because what you are doing in those instances where you might find an improvement where it is truly a pure public improvement, you want to have the flexibility to say we are not going to require you to fund it because it is ancillary at best benefit to you.  What we are trying to do is ensure the original compliance in how you can spend your funds is maintained.  That needs to be preserved above all else.  The take away is that it is a broader scope.  It has potential benefit to a broader area of applicants and still allows this Board the flexibility on a case by case basis to require matching if specific legal requirements are met.
Lipschultz:  I would move that we approve the modified downtown façade improvement grant application.

Jensen:  Second.

Pipal:  A motion and a second.  Discussion?

Basalone:  Just a question on the terminology here.  It says just up to $500 of grant funds is available (inaudible) and these funds must be fully matched by the applicant and the way I am hearing it Joe is that let’s say the applicant is getting $500 to restore a site and when we do that site it is going to cost $3,000.  The applicant can put up any amount of their private money they want in addition to the $500, so it must be equally matched – that terminology implies that it is a total of $1,000 limit.  

Borton:  I think I see what you are saying.  I didn’t change the language in A and B that was approved before.  You are exactly right with the intent is that if MDC writes a check of up to $500, the applicant is going to at least write a check for up to $500, if they want to spend more they can.

Basalone:  So it has to be equally matched implies that you have got to come in on a $1,000 limit if that is the way I am reading it – so if I were the applicant I would kind of be reading it that way – maybe I am nitpicking here to a certain degree.  Also because some of these costs – we just mentioned that a vinyl sign could cost around $150 for an 8 foot sign, so a sign in front of a store is going to cost literally quite a bit more than that, so I don’t think we need to imply that we are trying to get things on the cheap end in front of our stores, that we are trying to get whatever is the quality to what the applicant wants and then the same thing to the canopies.

Borton:  You bring up a good point and in response to that the figures of $500 and $1,500 are just placeholders utilized when it was originally done, but as far as it being $500 verses $200 or $1,000 that is up to the Board to determine.  

Bird:  When we originally set this up – the reason, Dan, yeah, $500 a matching – we didn’t want somebody to come in and spend $800 on a sign and then we pay $500 and then they pay $300 – that was our reasoning behind it.  We are going to put $500 and if you want to spend $5,000 of your own money that is great, but we will give you $500; but we didn’t want us giving you $500 and then you go and buy a $500 sign.  

Basalone:  I fully understand that, Member Bird, and that is my concern that we also have quality to be considered here in terms of the over all downtown destination look and the (inaudible) historically and everything else.  I just don’t want to imply that we are trying to do some cheap things so to speak.

Bird:  There are sign standards within the city.

Borton:  In response to that if the Board were inclined to do if you were to say a sign grant for example could be up to $2,000 or some figure.  That doesn’t mean that each application has to be $2,000 or you always have to approve $2,000, but if you wanted to expand the potential scope of this program and at least encourage applications then for perhaps a sign grant and maybe the awning canopy grant, you can raise that threshold and have up to a larger number, knowing good well it is still a case by case basis, but if you want to encourage someone to spend their own $2,000 to improve that goal then maybe a higher limit would encourage that application.

Basalone:  That would probably be my recommendation because what I am hearing Member Bird say about the lack of applicants and the out of pocket costs that applicants are having to put forth which is prohibiting them from participating – I mean it is great to spread $40,000 over 20 or 30 people, but if you are not getting 20 or 30 applicants, I would rather have 5 or 6 high quality ones, which then would show the rest of the merchants there is a program that they could be utilizing and maybe do more of that.

Bird:  I agree with you Dan, but I still believe that you have got to have the matching.

Basalone:  Oh, absolutely.

Bird:  Because as a business man, I don’t want a public entity paying for a sign that I had to pay for myself.  I actually pay for it because I am paying taxes to it.

Basalone:  No, I fully agree with that. I am saying that if our threshold is low then the implication is their threshold is low, I think the thresholds both need to be appropriate so that we can get the best quality (inaudible).

Pipal:  Mr. Borton is there a way to state that the project could be considered on a case by case basis if we didn’t want to – I think we all want the same thing.  We want them to be – do we want to – because it comes down to the bottom line of what Ashley just said earlier about promoting it and actually having people take advantage of it is and the feeling of the Board that there is a possibility that some of the language in this might send the wrong message to a potential applicant?  If not, then we have a motion before us.  If there is concern about that maybe we should direct counsel to make a change before we approve it and go forward.

Bird:  We can probably change the amounts or whatever you want to change in the motion if Mr. Lipschultz would want to restate the motion with those changes – the dollar volume and whatever – changes and wording after we pass the motion.  

Pipal:  What is the feeling of the Board?

Escobar:  We could just add a statement that says on a case by case basis – they will still see the intent and that is for us to give them around $500, knowing how much signs cost, but could we add something that states on a case by case basis additional funds may be allocated if equally matched.  Then that opens the door and possibility to maybe some of the shopping center down here at the freeway has a great big sign that maybe they want to do and that opens up the door for being able to grant additional funds to help encourage that.

Pike:  I apologize for all of the discussion (inaudible) say something along the lines of up to $500 (inaudible) saying we will pay for half but you are going to have to come up with the other part of it?

Pipal: I think just clarifying that there is that specific 50/50 match.  

Lipschultz:  I would be agreeable to raising the sign grant cap to some number, probably not to more than $1,000 because I would prefer to see funds going towards awnings, canopies and other façade improvement rather than signage.  I don’t think that – I think it is a way to assist in signage but I don’t think it is going to add a lot to the downtown by signs.  I would ask that my motion be amended to under A, raise the $500 up to $1,000 and then to ask counsel to clarify language that the applicant will at least equally match the contribution by MDC so that it is not – to Mr. Basalone’s point just to clarify that it is a minimal equal match.  

Pipal: Does the second agree?
Jensen:  Yes, I was going to say were we going to address B as well in that amendment (inaudible) – 

Lipschultz:  I am comfortable with the $1,500 for total budget.  So I would leave my request for an amended motion to increasing the $500 to $,1000 in sign grant.

Pipal:  Does the second agree?  So I think we need to restate that motion since it was stated quite a while ago.  The motion is to approve the downtown façade improvement grant application form that you have before you with one change and that is to increase the amount under 1A to $1,000 and to have counsel add clarifying language to not limit the applicant to only match MDC’s amount, but that they may do more.

Roll Call Vote:  Jensen, aye; Bird, aye; Escobar, aye; Lipschultz, aye; Basalone, aye; Pike, aye; Pipal, aye.

ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.

Pipal:  Anything else you need to add Mr. Borton?

Borton:  Madame Chair you have now heard my counsel’s report as well.
16. Counsel’s Report (Borton):

17. Project Manager’s Report (Ford):

Ford:  We received an email – I was not part of the initial discussion that you had with (inaudible) for the Meridian Urban Market.  We are being requested to initially fund, I assume, he didn’t really come out and say that, but that is sort of the context of what I am reading in this for a banner that could be stretched across Main Street and he is seemingly pretty antsy about this. I am not sure how the Board feels about this funding for activities for the Meridian Urban Market, but my understanding is that they felt that this would be something that could help promote the market and again I wasn’t a part of the initial conversation –

Pipal:  The initial conversation took place at the first market – and he said what we need is one of those big banners stretched across the street – Cascade uses them a lot and they promote whatever event.  He said he was going to follow up with an email and that is all –obviously, I passed it onto this Board and he continued to be excited about it. I told him that it would have to be part of the budget discussion and that it would have to be looked at it as an item that would have to be approved.

Bird: As far as I know the only place that you could put it up would be down around Zamzows and then you have to have approval from ACHD (inaudible).  

Pipal:  I would recommend that we at least let him know that because I think that he was envisioning right in the heart of downtown.  

Bird:  I don’t know what he is going to hang it from (inaudible).

Lipschultz:  My initial thought is that it would come under the grant that we made for marketing, you know, to Courtney.  It seems to have been and I may be wrong, but it seems to have been a financial success for her in terms of what is being sold and other things going on and again we did want to assist in getting it off the ground, but I know we continue to get smothered with additional marketing support to Red Sky.  I think it would be good to have that request come back through Courtney with an understanding of how that impacts (inaudible) prior to funding –

Ford:  I can ask her to do that.  Thank you.  I know our time is very short and I will leave everything but this.  (Inaudible) block grant and two applications and you have copies of those applications in your packet and one is for façade improvement for which we talked about and the other is for the Nine Mile flood plain study.  We were prioritized the façade improvement for $40,000.  We were not prioritized, we were at the bottom of the list with recommending zero funding for the Nine Mile flood plain study and I did attend the City Council meeting last night with the hopes that I would be able to testify, but unfortunately they chose not to allow testimony unless a specific council member had questions and I was the only one not questioned, which was incredibly frustrating because I cannot be back for the June 21st meeting.  Essentially what I am being told from the CDBG – is we see the value in doing this flood plain study and this is for the newer members.  There is a flood plain called the Nine Mile flood plain that runs essentially from I-84 to (inaudible) and it doesn’t affect all properties, but it does affect a number of them. The main issue is a lot of properties were developed prior to this flood plain being designated, therefore, if these properties want to redevelop, expand, utilize façade improvement grant money they have to come up and bring all of their properties up to code, which is very expensive and highly unlikely with individual property owners.  So one of the things that we have been working with is with the City of Meridian Public Works Department and ACHD as a resource is to figure out what we need to do to try and relocate the flood plain from a long term perspective.  It is a three to five year process.  The first year being what we asked for the $50,000 for is to do the initial flood plain study to get alternatives. Once we understand the alternatives then we would do a chlomar which is a letter of map provision.  We would submit that to FEMA, go through the entire review process and probably have to submit a revision or two and potentially get that approved where we could actually have a construction project out of this.  The city’s issue with our project – they think that there is a lot of merit to it – they think it is something that obviously needs to happen, but CDBG funding is very sensitive and is that if you don’t have something very tangible at the end of it – so for a flood plain study they have a hard time trying to figure out how to fund that and prioritize that, whereas if we were to come back at the end of the project and say can we have the $50,000 towards the construction, that is a different conversation and something that they say that they could support.  So I guess – I know this was important to all of us.  I talked to Kyle Radek with Public Works last night because we were both pretty disappointed in where we landed in the priority list is potentially between the two agencies maybe co-funding the flood plain study with the general fund budget next year.  Two is we try to change the minds of the City Council and try to get into the priority.  If that is the case, I need to figure out a way to get our story told on June 21st and unfortunately, I have a previous engagement that I cannot get out of and cannot reschedule.  But I don’t’ know if it is worth the conversation because I don’t think we are going to get a lot of support from the block grant administrator at this time. I definitely need that direction from you.  If we do want to try and move forward I do want to get letters of support from the city public works and ACHD and try to figure out how we can beef up the application that much more.

Bird:  If we are going to discuss this I am leaving.  I just have one question.  As I understand on Nine Mile deal, actually MDC has a very small area and why are we asking for $50,000 for a study?  

Ford:  We did cost estimates for the study and because it is an over all – you have to go beyond the limits of the district –

Bird:  That is what I am saying.  Where are you going from the study – I mean where are you going from? Because all we talked about was from Meridian Road back over to (inaudible).
Ford: If you see in the application there is a map that showed where that flood plain study was.  Basically we have to go downstream because obviously those impacts include study.  The city obviously through (inaudible) funds, the city can’t apply for it, so MDC had to take lead on it.  That was kind of the situation that we were put in.  The benefit to our folks in the urban renewal district however is the fact that they can expand, they can apply for a façade improvement grant dollars. They don’t have to pay for flood plain insurance anymore.  So there is a lot of economic development improvements for our business owners.  So that is the reason why we felt that it was important to take that lead.  

Pipal: I have a meeting next week with the grant administrator and I will talk to her a little bit and send out an email to the Board with an update and if we can discuss that in the future. I think where we stand right now is that she believes there is a better way to spend those dollars and – but I will talk to her and get back to the Board.

Ford:  Okay.       
18. Executive Session per Idaho State Code 67-2345:
19. Adjourn the Meeting:

Lipschultz:  Move to adjourn.

Jensen:  Second.

Pipal: All those in favor say aye.  Opposed.
ALL AYES.  MOTION CARRIED.
(AUDIO ON FILE OF THESE PROCEEDINGS)
APPROVED:
________________________________



____/______/_______

JULIE PIPAL, CHAIR
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